Thiopental Injection , powder for reconstitution, thiopental sodium, 500-mg vial packs of
25's  £196.75 (pounds sterling)
The current expiry date is February 2014.

POTASSIUM CHLORIDE 1.5GM 10ML INJ. PACKS OF 10 £15.55
Expiry date: 01/13

Pancuronium Injection, pancuronium bromide 2 mg/mL, 2-mL amp packs of 10's
£58.73
Expiry date: 11/11

If you could supply me with the following information, I can produce a proforma invoice:
Invoice address
Delivery address, including contact person and contact person phone number

I will dispatch the goods to you by FedEx,
FedEx delivery charges is separate item.

In order to get the product easier through US customs, I think it would be a goods idea for
you to write a letter in the department letterhead, attention of US custom and let them know
why you need this product. I would include this letter in your shipment.

Please also email or fax me a copy of your DEA license, to include it in your shipment.

Please let me know if you need further information.

Many thanks,
Kind regards
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From: Alston, Steve M@CDCR

Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 11:21 AM
To: Kernan, Scott@CDCR

Subject: RE: Thiopental Injection

Scott,

Pulling our team together this afternoon to discuss in detail after which | will get back to you on
this. A few questions for you:

1. Looks like a proposed three year agreement, right?

2. Estimated cost?

3. Will the proposed contractor store the inventory and ship it to CDCR on an as needed
basis?

THANKS!

Steve

From: McAuliffe, John@CDCR

Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 9:20 AM
To: Kernan, Scott@CDCR

Subject: FW: Thiopental Injection

FYI
John

From: [
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Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 9:15 AM
To: McAuliffe, John@CDCR

Subject: RE: Thiopental Injection

Received.

| have attached our standard contract (MSA). A Statement of Work (SOW) will define exact work to
be conducted.

Please review and redline any issues.

From: McAuliffe, John@CDCR [mailto:John.McAuliffe@cdcr.ca.gov]
Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 12:05 PM

Subject: FW: Thiopental Injection
Importance: High

Thank you again here is the information and email.
John McAuliffe

From:

Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 5:27 AM
To: McAuliffe, John@CDCR

Subject: Thiopental Injection

Importance: High

30-09-10
Dear Mr. McAuliffe,

Thank you for your call and thank you for your interest in _
I would be happy to supply you:

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

Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 3:52 PM
To: Kernan, Scott@CDCR

Cc: McAuliffe, John@CDCR

Subject: RE: Thiopental Injection
Importance: High

Scott,
Here is our take on the issue:

The attached MSA is a vendor provided agreement covering a number of services,
which, based on your note below, we should not sign.

Based on your note this appears to be a straight purchase and not a service contract.
Consequently, if - is in fact the vendor of choice, we will need to see if they will
accept a CDCR issued purchase order.

If you want to pursue a non-competitive bid purchase, then a justification will need to
be developed explaining why this cannot go out for bid.

The dollar value of the purchase will dictate required approvals:

o Less than $5,000 can be approved by OBS without an NCB.

o If the purchase is $5-25,000 an NCB will be required, but will not require DGS
review / approval.

o If the purchase is in excess of $25,000 then DGS review / approval will be
required.

Hope this helps!

Steve

From: Kernan, Scott@CDCR

Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 1:44 PM
To: Alston, Steve M@CDCR

Cc: McAuliffe, John@CDCR

Subject: RE: Thiopental Injection

Steve,

Thanks for your help. Needs to be addressed confidentially.
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| assume the 3 year noted in the agreement is standard. Fact is we are buying enough of the drugs
to last until 2014 and would not think, but not impossible, that we would need any more during the
three years. So one time transaction.

Fli have to get back to you on cost. Don’t know.

The contractor would facilitate the one time purchase of the drug and we would take possession
for storage at SQ. no need for them to store it.

Scott

From: Alston, Steve M@CDCR

Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 11:21 AM
To: Kernan, Scott@CDCR

Subject: RE: Thiopental Injection

Scott,

Pulling our team together this afternoon to discuss in detail after which 1 will get back to you on
this. A few questions for you:

1. Looks like a proposed three year agreement, right?
Estimated cost?

3. Will the proposed contractor store the inventory and ship it to CDCR on an as needed
basis?

THANKS!

Steve

From: McAuliffe, John@CDCR .
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

Cc:

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

To:

Subject: FW: Thiopental Injection

Importance: High

Mike
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

ACLU PRA 001108 LI000976



From: Alston, Steve M@CDCR

To: I R S
Subject: FW: Thiopental Injection
Date: Thursday, September 30, 2010 11:18:02 AM

Attachments: Master Service Agreement Template, 06,05.09,05.09.00C

| am scheduling a meeting for this afternoon to discuss....

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

I have attached our standard contract (MSA). A Statement of Work (SOW) will define exact work to

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
Dear

Than! you !or your call and thank you for your interest m_

1 would be happy to supply you:

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

Pancuronium Injection, pancuronium bromide 2 mé/mL, 2-mL amp packs of 10's
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
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MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PHARMACEUTICAL SUPPORT SERVICES

THIS MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PHARMACEUTICAL SUPPORT
SERVICES this M A is made and entered into as of the day of y and
et een an ha ing its rinci al lace of
usiness at the _lient and

Indiana cor oration ha ing its rinci al lace of usiness a
e Facility . As usedinthis M A the term Facility il also include any
additional failiies  hich may e o erated y [JJj in the future so long as such facilities meet the

same uality standards as the Facility.

Preliminary Statements

WHEREAS is in the usiness of ro iding iological harmaceutical and medical de ice
su ort ser ices including ut not limited to storage and distri ution of roducts under controlled
tem eratures the “_er ices”

WHEREAS the lient ishes to store certain of its roducts and su lies indi idually a
roduct and collecti ely the _roducts at the Facility

WHEREAS this M A sets forth the general terms and conditions under hich- ill store
the lients roducts

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the co enants re resentations arranties and mutual
agreements in this M A contained and other good and alua le consideration the recei t and
sufficiency of hich are ackno Iedged-and the lient agree as follo s

Terms and Conditions

Section 1. General Terms.

Section 1.1 Definitions. hen used herein the ca itali ed terms a o e shall ha e the
meanings therein stated and the follo ing ca itali ed terms shall ha e the meaning ascri ed to them
elo . Any ca itali ed term used ut not defined in this M A has the same meaning as used in the
or any su se uent tatementof ork.

a " lient arties” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection
“ onfidential Information” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection

¢ ‘“Indemnitee” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection
d ‘“Indemnitor” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection
e ‘Initial eriod” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection
f * ffer eriod” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed theretoin ection . a.
g " ene al eriod” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection

h - laims” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection

i - arties” shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection

{Master Service Agreement Template, 06.05.09.DOC /}Master Service Agreement - Client Name, Revision , MM/DD/09
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" shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection
k “ tatementof ork”shall ha e the meaning ascri ed theretoin ection
I “Term’ shall ha e the meaning ascri ed thereto in ection

Section 1.2 Relationship Between MSA and Statements of Work. ill store the
roducts in accordance ith the terms set forth in this M A and a se arate ork order s ecific to a
articular roduct or roducts each a _tatementof ork . A tatementof orkmay e modified from

time to time y ay of an amended or su lemental tatement of ork signed y oth arties. The
arties ha e contem oraneously e ecuted a tatementof ork o. the" " hich is attached as
hi it to this M A. Additional future tatements of ork ill e attached as hi its in consecuti e
order. In the e ent of any conflict or contradiction et een the ro isions of the or any other
tatement f ork and this M A the ill control ut to the ma imum e tent reasona ly
ractica le each tatementof ork il edeemedto easu lementtothisM A.

Section 1.3 Right to Store Goods. The lient re resents and arrants that the lient is in
la ful ossession and has full legal title to e ery roduct to e stored in the Facility or to e handled in
any manner y and has the right and authority to store them at the Facility and to engage
to erform the er ices. The lient ill ro ide ith information concerning the roduct s ic
is accurate com lete and sufficient to ena le o com ly ith all la s and regulations concerning
the storage handling and trans ortation of the roducts including ut not limited to any facts or
circumstances that may make either the roduct s the trans ortation of the roducts or the storage of
the roducts inany ayha ardous to health.

Section 1.4 Packaging and Labeling. To the e tent that any tatement of ork ro ides
that ill ro ide ackaging and or la eling ser ices for the lient the lient ill deli erto
either a thea lica le ackaging materials and orla els or  detailed instructions including la elte
and art ork for all ackages and la els including all information re uvired y a licalela to e
included on the la el of the a lica le roduct and the lient ackno ledges that- ill rely on the
accuracy of such information ithout additional inde endent in estigation .

Section 1.5 Domestic _Distribution of Commercial Pharmaceutical Products. If
a lica le ill distri ute harmaceutical roducts ithin the continental nited tates in
com liance ithits A accreditation and license and in com liance ith the arious state licenses

hich it currently holds. If lient re uests distri ution to states in _hich does not currently hold a
state license hich ermits them to do so then lient must notify of this re uestand gi e
reasona le time to secure that state license. F retains the right to refuse distri ution to the gi en

e

state if in its sole discretion it decides that urden of securing the license out eighs the current
usiness o ortunity.

Section 2. Term/Termination.
Section 2.1 Term. This M A il commence on the date set forth a o e and ill ha e an
initial term of three years the |Initial eriod and ill automatically rene for additional one year
eriods each a _ene al eriod atthe end of the Initial eriod and each ene al eriod thereafter
unless the lient or ro ides ritten notice to the other of its decision not to rene the M A at
least si ty days rior to the e iration of the Initial eriod or the then current ene al eriod.
ot ithstanding the foregoing this M A ill continue until satisfaction of any o ligations under any

tatement of ork hich is e ecuted during the Initial eriod or any a lica le ene al eriod. The
eriod that this M A is actually in effect in accordance iththe ro isions hereofis referred to in thisM A
as the “Term”.
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ro erly of_ onfidential — o yingis rohi ited age of

ACLU PRA 001113 LI000981



Section 2.2 Termination of this MSA for Breach. In the e ent of a material reach of this
M Aora tatement of ork y either arty including ut not limited to the lients failure to ay all
harges as s ecified in this M A y the due date the other arty may terminate this M A u on thirty
days rior ritten notice to the reaching arty ro ided that such reach is not cured as
contem lated elo . The notice ill descri e the material reach in reasona le detail. The recei ing
arty ill e entitled to cure the material reach during such thirty day eriod and if not cured this
M A and all tatements of ork ill terminate effecti e at the end of the thirty day eriod ro ided
ho e er all accrued rights and o ligations including the lients o ligations to ay any and all harges
due hereunder ith res ect to the eriod rior to the termination date ill sur i e the termination of this
M A andthe tatements of ork untilfully discharged.

Section 2.3 Termination_of Statement of Work. A tatement of ork may e terminated

y either arty ith or ithout cause u on ninety days rior ritten notice to the other arty

ro ided ho e er all accrued rights and o ligations including the lients o ligations to ay any and all

harges due thereunder ith res ect to the eriod rior to the termination date ill sur i e the

termination of the tatement of ork and this M A until fully discharged. Termination of a tatement of

ork ill not terminate this M A unless the terminating arty is entitled to terminate this M A in
accordance ith _ection . and ro erly e ercises such right in accordance ith such section .

Section 3. Compensation.

Section 3.1 Terms of Payment. il ro ide the lient a monthly in oice setting forth
all of the harges then due. ayment of the harges is due ithin thirty days of date of the
a lica le in oice. Inthe e ent any harges are not aid hen due alate ayment fee e ual to fi e

ercent of the harges then due ill e assessed against the lient. Any harges not aid ithin
thirty days of the date of in oice ill accrue interest at the ma imum rate allo ed yla in addition
to the fi e ercent late ayment fee. The lient ill reim urse for all costs incurs
including reasona le attorneys fees and collection costs in collecting amounts o ed ythe lient.

Section 3.2 Offer Period.

a The harges uoted on a tatement of ork _ill remain alid for a eriod of

thirty days from the date the tatement of ork is signed y- the _ffer eriod . The

lient must indicate its acce tance of the uoted harges y signing and deli ering the

tatement of ork to ithin the ffer eriod. In the a sence of ritten acce tance the

act of tendering the roduct for storage or other er ices y ithin the ffer eriod il

constitute acce tance vy the lient of the terms and conditions s ecified in the a lica le
tatement of ork.

If a roduct does not conform to the descri tion on the a lica le tatement of

ork orifa roductis tendered toF after the ffer eriod orifa roductis deli ered to the

Facility after the deli ery date s ecified on the tatement of ork may refuse to acce t

such roduct in its sole discretion. If acce ts such roduct the arties shall negotiate in

good faith for the charges for handling such roduct consistent ith the harges outlined in the
tatement of ork.

Section 4. Risk of Loss.

Section 4.1 Risk of Loss. The lient ill ear the risk of any loss of or to any and all
roducts at all times e en hen the roductis in the ossession of at the Facility or other ise.
ill not e lia le for loss delay or damage of any kind resulting from defects in containers or other
storage media furnished y or on ehalf of the lient. elease of a roductto a erson in accordance

ith the instruction of a lient e resentati e ill e considered deli ery to the lient and
res onsi ilities in res ectof such roduct ill cease u on such deli ery.
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Section 4.2 Limits_on Liability. ot ithstanding anything in this M A or any tatement of
ork to the contrary H total lia ility to the lient and all * lient arties” as defined elo for
damages arising out of or relating to thisM A any tatementof ork any attachment to this M A or any
other ritten agreement made ursuant to this M A regardless of the legal theory of the claim and
including any claim for indemnification under _ection ill note ceed and ill not ere uiredto
ay or reim urse the lient or any other lient arties for any amount in e cess of the amount actually
aid to y lient under this M A and the a lica le tatements of ork ith res ect to the
roducts hich are in ol ed in the claim. The lients claim for a return of such amounts aid il e the
lients e clusi e remedy for any damages under this M A and the a lica le tatements of ork.
ot ithstanding anything in this M A any tatement of ork any attachment to this M A or any other
ritten agreement made ursuant to this M A to the contrary in the e ent of a loss of roduct y lient
in hich the loss is adudged to e directly attri uta le to gross negligence andor illful
misconduct damages to lient ill not e ceed the limits of insurance co erages identified in
ection . elo . ot ithstanding anything in this M A any tatementof ork any attachment to this
M A or any other ritten agreement made ursuant to this M A to the contrary under no circumstances
ill either arty e entitled to a incidental indirect conse uential or s ecial damages or uniti e or
e em lary damages arising in connection ith the defauit or reach of either arty in the erformance of
any of its o ligations under this M A or any tatement of ork. The artiese ressly ai e any right or
claim to incidental indirect conse uential s ecial uniti e or e em lary damages each may ha e or
hich may arise in the future in connection ith any roceeding claim or contro ersy directly or indirectly
in ol ing this M A any tatementof ork or any ofthe er ices. amages to the roducts shall e
calculated on the asis of the re lacement cost for the roducts.

Section 4.3 Insurance. Products are not insured by - against loss or injury
however caused.

a The lient agrees to o tain at its o n cost insurance co erage for each

roduct and to ro ide ith e idence of such insurance u on re uest. The lient agrees

to maintain ade uate commercial general lia ility limits such limits ill not e less than

er occurrence and in aggregate. lient also agrees to list as

additional insured on its olicies and to ro ide“ ith thirty days ritten notice u on
the cancellation of any insurance co erage.

ill atitso ne ense during the term of this M A maintain insurance
as follo s i rrors and missions insurance in an amount not less than of
co erage ii om rehensi e eneral ia ility msurance ith a com ined single limit for odily
inury and ro erty damage lia ility of not less than ith res ect to any one
occurrence iii  arehousemen egal ia ility insurance in an amount not less than
and i orkers om ensation and m loyers ia ility Insurance as re uired y the tate of
Indiana carried under a co em loyer contract .

Section 4.4 Environmental Costs. here damage loss or in ury occurs to stored roducts
other than as a result of a material reach y of its o ligations hereunder  hich results in a
release or a threatened release of roduct constituents in on or at the Facility the lient ill e
res onsi le for the cost of remo ing and dis osing of such roducts and the cost of any en ironmental
clean u and site remediation resulting from the damage loss or in ury to the roducts.

Section4.5  Notice of Loss, Claim and Filing of Suit. The lient il rom tly gi é*
notice of any loss of or damage to any roduct thatthe lient elie es ascausedin holeorin art y
laims against# the lient and any other ersons claiming y or through the lient

ro!ucl y

must e resented in riting to ithin a reasona le time and in no e ent longer than either si ty
days after deli ery of the orsi t days after the lient or the last kno n holder
of a negotia le arehouse recei t is notiied y that damage loss or inury to art or all of the
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roducts has occurred  hiche er time is shorter. o action may e maintained ythe lient or any third

arties against for damage loss or in ury to stored roducts unless timely ritten notice has een
gi en as ro ided in this ection . and unless such claim is commenced either ithin si months
after date of deli ery vy or ithin si months after the lient or the last kno n holder of a

negotia le arehouse recei t Is notified that damage loss or inury to art or all of the roduct has
occurred  hiche er time is shorter.  hen roducts ha e not een deli ered notice may e gi en of
kno n damage loss orinury to the roducts y mailing of a registered or certified letter to the lient or to
the last kno n holder of a negotia le arehouse recei t.

Section 4.6 Liability for Mis-Shipment. If negligently mis shi s any roduct
ill_ay the reasona le trans ortation charges incurred to return the mis shi ed roduct to the Facility.
il ha e no lia ility for damages due to the consignees acce tance or use of the roduct
ether such roduct e those of the lient or a third arty unless the lient esta lishes such loss
occurred ecause of failure to e ercise the care re uired of- under _ection . elo .

Section 4.7 Representations and Warranties. H re resents and arrants that
a the erices ill e erformed in a rofessional manner y ualtfied com etent ersonnel and in
accordance ith all a lica le la s and in accordance ith generally acce ted industry standards
a lica letosuch er ices o ligations under this M A do not materially conflict ith and ili

not cause to ein reac! o' ani other agreement to hich itis ound including ut not limited to

any lease for the Facility and c has or ill o tain all necessary go ernment or regulatory
authority ermits for storage and handling of the roduct at the Facility.

Section 4.8 Client Representations and Warranties. lient re resents and arrants that
a lient’s o ligations under this M A do not materially conflict ith and ill not cause lientto e in
reach of any other agreement to hichitis ound lient has or ill o tain all necessary go ernment

or regulatory authority ermits to o n shi store and distri ute the roduct and ¢ any undersigned
erson signing on ehalf of any lient that is a cor oration limited lia ility com any or other entity
arrants and re resents that i said erson is fully em o ered and duly authori ed to e ecute and
deli er this M A for and on ehalf of said lient ii thatsaid lient has full ca acity o er and authority
to enter into and carry out the o ligations under this M A and iii that this M A has een duly
authori ed e ecuted and deli ered and constitutes a legal alid and inding o ligation of the lient.

Section 5. Confidentiality; Disclosure.
Section 5.1 Confidentiality. ach of and the lient agree not to disclose any
ro rietary and or confidential information directly or indirectly in ol ing or concerning or the

lient collecti ely the _onfidential Information  hich is furnished or disclosed y one arty to the other
arty during the course of the erformance of this M Aora tatementof ork. onfidential Information
ho e er does notinclude information hich a is generally a aila le to the u lic other than through any
act or omission y the non disclosing arty and is not su ect to a confidentiality agreement ith an
o ligation of secrecy to the disclosing arty or a third arty the recei ing arty cansho asinits
ossession at the time of the disclosure and as not ac uired directly or indirectly from the disclosing
arty or ¢ ecomes a aila le to the recei ing arty on a non confidential asis from a source other than
the disclosing arty ro ided itis not su ect to a confidentiality agreement ith an o ligation of secrecy
to the disclosing arty or a third arty. This o ligation of confidentiality ursuant to the terms of this M A
il e in addition to and ill not su ersede any other confidentiality agreements entered into et een
and the lient.

Section 5.2 Ownership of Confidential Information. nershi of all right title and
interest in each artys onfidential Information ill remain at all times ith the disclosing arty and

nothing in this M A ora tatement of ork ill gi e any right title or interestin one artys onfidential
Information to the other arty.
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Section 5.3 Non-Disclosure and Non-Use of Confidential Information. In furtherance of
this M A and in order to assure ade uate rotection of oth arties against the rongful use or
disclosure of the onfidential Information F and the lient agree to hold all onfidential information
in strict confidence. ach arty ackno ledges that any use or attem ted use of any onfidential
Information or any disclosure of the onfidential Information to any third arty ould constitute immediate
and irre ara le harm to the disclosing arty and ould e of significant enefit to any com etitor of the
disclosing arty. ach arty ill e deemed to ha e afiduciary duty to rotect all onfidential Information
from im ro er disclosure or use. ce t ith the rior ritten consent of the disclosing arty or as
re uired yla each arty agrees not to directly or indirectly disclose or use or authori e any third arty
to disclose or use any onfidential Information for a an indefinite duration or in the e ent that a
court of com etent urisdiction determines that an indefinite eriod is unreasona le fi e years
follo ing the date hereof. The rights and remedies ith res ect thereto hether legal or e uita le il
remain in full force and effect during the eriod descri edin a or a o e asa lica le.

Section 6. Indemnification.

and its affiliated entities and all of and such affiliates res ecti e shareholders directors
managers artners mem ers officers em loyees su contractors and agents collecti ely
arties from and against any and all lia ilities o ligations enalties claims udgments demands
actions dis ursements of any kind and nature suits losses damages costs and e enses including
ut not limited to reasona le attorneys’ fees arising out of or in connection ith ro erty damage or
ersonal inury including ut not limited to death of third arties collecti ely laims hich
may e incurred vy any of the- arties y reason of or arising out of a any erson filing any lien
against any ro erty of or any laims in  hich the erson claims ayment from for
ser ices ro ided to the lient any inury including ut not limited to death to any erson arising
from the ser ices ro ided to lient ursuant to this M A ¢ any ersonal inury including ut not
limited to death or ro erty damage caused y the gross negligence or illful misconduct acts or
omissions of any em loyees agents or contractors of the lient d any damages that may incur
as a direct or ro imate result of the inaccuraci or incom leteness of the i ackaging or la els or i

Section 6.1 Indemnification bi Client. The lient illindemnify defend and hold harmless

ackaging or la eling information ro ided to under _ection . or e the material reach of any
re resentations arranties co enants agreements or o ligations of the lient underthis M A.

Section 6.2 Indemnification bym ill indemnify defend and hold harmless the
lient and its affiliated entities and all of lients and such affiliates res ecti e shareholders directors
managers arthers mem ers officers em loyees su contractors and agents collecti ely lient
arties from and against any and all lia ilities o ligations enalties claims udgments demands
actions dis ursements of any kind and nature suits losses damages costs and e enses including
ut not limited to reasona le attorneys’ fees arising out of or in connection ith ro erty damage or
ersonal inury including ut not limited to death of third arties hich may e incurred y the lient
arties y reason of or arising out of a any ersonal inury including ut not limited to death or
ro erty damage caused y the gross negligence or illful misconduct acts or omissions of any
em loyees agents or contractors of #g and the material reach of any re resentations
arranties co enants agreements or o ligations of under this M A.

Section 6.3 Indemnification Procedure. If any of the - arties or the lient arties
intends to seek indemnification ursuant to this _ection  any such erson seeking indemnification an
Indemnitee the Indemnitee il rom tly gi e notice to the arty o ligated to ro ide indemnification
hereunder any such erson from hom indemnification is sought an [ndemnitor descri ing the claim
in reasona le detail _ro ided ho e er the failure to ro ide such notice ill not affect the o ligations of
the Indemnitor unless and only to the e tent the Indemnitor is actually reudiced. ithin thirty days
after recei t of such notice the Indemnitor ill gi e notice to the Indemnitee hether i the Indemnitor
agrees to indemnify the Indemnitee and undertake conduct and control through counsel of its o n
choosing and at its o n e ense the settlement or defense of such laim ii to reser e its rights to
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indemnify the Indemnitee and undertake conduct and control through counsel of its o n choosing the
settlement or defense of such claim or iii to affirmati ely refuse to indemnify the Indemnitee. If the
Indemnitor takes the actions descri ed in su aragra h i or ii immediately a o e the Indemnitee il
coo erate ith it in connection there ith _ro ided ho e er that the Indemnitee may artici ate in such
settlement or defense through counsel chosen vy it _ro ided further ho e er that the fees and

e enses of such counsel il e orne y the Indemnitee. The Indemnitor ill not ithout the ritten
consent of the Indemnitee settle or com romise any action if such settlement or consent illim ose any
o ligations on the Indemnitee. If the Indemnitor fails to take the actions descri ed in su aragra h i or
ii immediately a 0o e the Indemnitee ill ha e the right to contest settle or com romise any claim

ithout the consent of the Indemnitor _ro ided ho e er thatin such case the Indemnitee illnot ai e
any right to indemnity therefor ursuant to this M A. In all e ents the Indemnitee and Indemnitor il
coo erate fully in all as ects of any in estigation defense retrial acti ities trial com romise settlement
or discharge of any claim in res ect of hich indemnity is sought hereunder including ut not limited to

ro iding the other arty ith reasona le access to em loyees and officers including as itnesses and
other information necessary for defense of the claim.

Section 7. Miscellaneous.

Section 7.1 Independent Status. H status ill e that of an inde endent contractor
and not that of a ser ant agent or em loyee of the lient. o em loyee of ill eregarded as an
em loyee of the lient for any ur ose including ut not limited to ta and insurance matters. The

lient is not res onsi le for the ayment of em loyer relatedta es hichmay eim osed ithres ectto
any em loyees or agents of including ut not limited to FI A unem loyment ta es state and
federalincome ta  ithholding ayments.

Section 7.2 Non-Raiding. uring the Term and for a eriod of one year after the
e iration or termination of the Term oth lient and ill not offer em loymentto em loy or enter
into a ser ices arrangement as an inde endent contractor or other ise ith any ersonem loyed Yy the
other arty during the Term that is or as directly or indirectly in ol ed in the erformance of any of the
er ices. The arties recogni e that any reach of this _ection . may cause irre ara le inury to the
good ill and ro rietary rights of either arty inade uately com ensa le in monetary damages.
Accordingly in addition to any other legal or e uita le remedies that may e a aila le to a arty
hereunder if the other arty threatens to reach or reaches any ro ision of this _ection . the arties
agree that the non reaching arty ill e entitled to seek and o tain immediate inuncti e relief in the
form of a tem orary restraining order ithout notice reliminary inunction or ermanent in unction
against the reaching arty to enforce this ro ision and to en oin any iolation or threatened iolation of
this ro ision. either arty ill ere uiredto ostany ond or other security and ilinot e re uired to
demonstrate any actual in ury or damage to o tain in uncti e relief from the courts.

Section 7.3 Counterparts. This M A may e e ecuted in one or more counter arts
including a facsimile counter art ith a rinted ackno ledgement of recei t recei ed or an e mail
counter art ith a rinted ackno ledgement of recei t recei ed each of hich il e deemedto e an
original ut all of hich together ill constitute one and the same M A. nly one counter art signed y
the arty against hich enforcea ility is sought needs to e roduced to e idence the e istence of this
M A

Section 7.4 Severability. if a court of com etent urisdiction makes a final determination that
any term or ro ision of this M A is in alid or unenforcea le and ail rights to a eal the determination
ha e een e hausted or the eriod of time during hich any a eal of the determination may e

erfected has een e hausted the remaining terms and ro isions ill e unim aired and the in alid or
unenforcea le term or ro ision ill e deemed re laced y a term or ro ision that is alid and
enforcea le and that most closely a ro imates the intention of the arties ith res ect to the in alid or
unenforcea le term or ro ision as e idenced y the remaining alid and enforcea le terms and
conditions of this M A.
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Section 7.5 Assignment. either arty may assign or delegate this M A ithout the
e ress ritten consent of the other arty e ce t that either arty may assign delegate or transfer this
M A and all of its res ecti e rights and o ligations under this M A to any usiness entity that y sale
merger consolidation or other ise ac uires all or su stantially all of the assets of such arty to hich this
M A relates ro ided that such assignee of the arty shall e reasona ly ualified to erform the
er ices hereunder and shall ha e assumed in riting all of the assignor’s o ligations under this M A.
on such assignment and no ation as ro ided hereunder any such successor entity ill e deemed to

e su stituted for the assignor for all ur oses of thisM A.

Section 7.6 Modification. This M A may not e modified amended or ai ed in any
mannere ce t yaninstrumentin riting signed y all arties to thisM A,

Section 7.7 Governing Law, Venue and Jurisdiction. The alidity erformance
enforcement inter retation and any other as ectofthisM A ill e go erned ythela softhe tate of

Indiana not ithstanding the choice ofla  ro isions of the enue here the action is rought here the
iolation occurred or here the lient may e located. The lient agrees and consents to the e clusi e
urisdiction of any state or federal court located in Indiana olis Indiana and ai es any defense of lack of
ersonal urisdiction or im ro er enue to a claim rought in such court e ce tthath may elect at

its sole discretion to litigate the action in the county or state here any reach y the lient occurred or
here the lientcan e found.

Section 7.8 Headings. The headings of the ections of this M A are inserted for
con enience only and ill not e deemed to constitute art of this M A or to affect the construction of this
M A

Section 7.9 Force Majeure. ill e relie ed of its o ligations under this M A if

des ite its reasona le effort to do so it is una le to erform its duties hereunder as a result of acts of

od ar fires terrorism u lic enemies sei ure under legal rocess strikes lockouts riots and ci il
commotions or any other reason eyond the control of

Section 7.10 Offsets. The lient ai es any e isting and future claims and offsets against
ayments due hereunder and agrees to ay such amounts regardless of any offset or claim that
may e asserted ythe lientoronthe lients ehalf.

Section 7.11 Binding Effect. This M A ill e inding u on and inure to the enefit of the
arties hereto and any ermitted successors or assigns thereof.

Section 7.12 Survival. The rights and o ligations set forth in _ections . e ..
and . through . inclusi e ill sur i etermination ore iration of this M A,

Section 7.13 Waiver. The ai er y any arty of com liance y any other arty ith any
ro ision of this M A ill not o erate or e construed as a ai er of any other ro ision of this M A
hether or not similar or a continuing ai er or a ai er of any su se uent reach y a arly of a
ro ision of this M A. erformance y any arty of any act not re uired of it under the terms and
conditions of this M A ill not constitute a ai er of the limitations on its o ligations under this M A and
no erformance ill esto that arty from asserting those limitations as to any further or future
erformance of its o ligations. The lient ackno ledges and agrees that e ery reach of this M A or
any similar agreement entered into et een_ and a third arty is uni ue. Therefore the failure of
# to enforce the same similar or different restriction in a similar agreement or to seek a different
remedy or any other act or omission y ill not e construed as a ai er or esto el to the
enforcement of this M A against the lient.
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Section 7.14 Notices. All notices and other communications ro ided to any arty hereto
under this M A il e in riting or y facsimile and addressed or deli ered to such arty at their
addresses elo . Any notice if mailed and ro erly addressed ith ostage re aid il e deemed
gi en three usiness days after eing sent any notice hen transmitted y facsimile if sent during
normal usiness hours of the reci ient il e deemed gi en on such day if recei t is confirmed and if
not so confirmed then on the ne t usiness day any notice if deli ered y hand or courier ill e
deemed gi en hen deli ered to the address set forth thereon any notice hen transmitted y confirmed
electronic mail if sent during normal usiness hours of the reci ient il e deemed gi en on such day if
recei tis confirmed and if not so confirmed then on the ne t usiness day and addressed as follo s

a Ifto- to

If to the lient to

Facsimile

Tele hone

Attn
Any arty may y giing ritten notice to the other arties change the address to hich notice ill e
sent.

Section 7.15 Interpretation. oth arties ackno ledge and agree that the terms and
conditions of this M A and any a lica le tatementof ork ill su ersede and control o er any terms
contained in any in oice or other documents e changed or entered into et een- and the lient
that contradict or conflict ith any term in this M A or any attached hereto.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the arties hereto ha e signed this Master er ice Agreement as of
the day and year firsta o e ritten vy officials authori ed to ind their res ecti e organi ations.

y y

rinted
Title

ate ate
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